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PROJECT APPLICATION FORM – 2014 
 
 
Applicant: Morrison Farm Committee on behalf of the Acton Board of Selectmen  

Submission Date: November 12, 2013 

Applicant's Address:      Purpose: (Please select all that apply) 

Morrison Farm Committee O Open Space 
c/o Mary Ann Ashton, Chair O Community Housing 

Phone Number: 978-263-4399 X Historic Preservation 
E-mail: MABAshton@aol.com X Recreation 

Town Committee (if applicable): Morrison Farm Committee, Board of Selectmen, Historical 

commission, Natural Resources Department         

Project Name:  Morrison Farm Improvements – Historic Foundations, Pond Trails, Parking  

Project Location/Address: 116 Concord Road, Acton       _____  

Amount Requested: $416,550          

Project Summary:  In the space below, provide a brief summary of the project.   
 
 
The Morrison Farm Committee (or “MFC” or “Committee”), on behalf of the Board of Selectmen, 
requests approval for CPA funding to improve the recreational opportunities at  the Morrison Farm, to 
improve signage and access so that more residents may enjoy the property, and to preserve two of the 
significant historic assets adjacent to the property.   
 
Morrison Farm connects to Acton’s agricultural roots and Revolutionary history as well as its early 
industrial history in East Acton along the Nashoba Brook.  The proposed improvements for Morrison 
Farm leverage other opportunities that have been supported by the Community Preservation 
Committee in the past, such as the Bruce Freeman Rail Trail, East Acton Village, and a planning grant for 
reuse of Morrison Farm itself.  Last year, we presented a comprehensive plan for its use to Acton’s 
Annual Town Meeting. Funding was to be provided through a bond, but the vote did not receive the 
required two‐thirds approval from Town Meeting members, even though it received the support of a 
majority.  This year’s committee set out to craft a proposal that would implement some improvements 
to the property, while still maintaining a vision for a use of the property that would fulfill the dreams of 
its many varying constituencies.  The submission for this year focuses on some of the most urgent needs 
for improvements to several of the areas around the edges of the Morrison Farm property, while 
continuing to protect its unique habitats, views and existing uses.   
 
Morrison Farm and environs are a cornerstone location for our town, with multiple open space, historic, 
and recreation elements.  MFC believes that the Plan meets eligibility requirements of the CPA for the 
following reasons: 
   

 History.  The proposal plans to survey two areas that flank either side of Morrison Farm: the 
Robbins Homestead and the Ice House foundations.  Additionally we propose to stabilize the 
cellar hole of the Robbins Homestead, which has experienced significant deterioration due to 
the fire that demolished the house and the steady march of time.  These two important historic 
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assets on either side of the farm will be highlighted with signage so that visitors to Morrison 
Farm can appreciate the significance of the area for Acton’s agricultural history, its role in the 
Revolutionary War, and the early industry in Acton along the Nashoba Brook. 

 
 Recreation.  The proposal creates a new and accessible trail along the west side of Ice House 
Pond and a picnic area near the Ice House trailhead.  Ice House Pond itself will be available for 
fishing, boating, birding, etc.  In addition, the whole of Morrison Farm will continue to be 
available for a variety of passive recreational activities. These passive recreational activities 
include gardening, walking and hiking, and birding, to name a few.  The Recreation Commission 
has advocated in Town planning documents, such as the Open Space and Recreation Plan and 
Acton 2020, for providing facilities that are up‐to‐date, accessible and address the needs of 
underserved populations. Morrison Farm’s existing trails are a source of enjoyment to those 
who are able to navigate the rustic trails, but we would like to see trails created for persons with 
disabilities, and those who are too young or too old to use the existing trails without assistance.  
The expanded network of Morrison Farm trails will provide a very prominent introduction for 
many residents to Acton’s extensive conservation land network with opportunities to enjoy 
forest, meadow, farmland, and pond.  Conservation trails are often an “untapped” resource that 
the Recreation Commission recognizes could be marketed more extensively for recreation 
purposes.  In conjunction with history, nature and agricultural activities, the Recreation 
Department is investigating methods for providing therapeutic, inclusive and adaptive 
recreation opportunities, a need expressed by residents for disabled children and adults.  
Morrison Farm will provide excellent opportunities to provide such programs. The addition of an 
accessible trail continues to open pristine conservation areas to underserved populations.  
 

The various elements of the Morrison Farm Plan form a unique, integrated park with open space, 
historic and recreational resources, linking to the Bruce Freeman Rail Trail, East Acton Village, 
Woodlawn Cemetery and reaching toward our historic center of Acton, which can be honored and 
enjoyed by Acton residents and visitors for generations to come.  This proposal is a first step toward 
linking these assets in Acton. 
 

Estimated Date for Commencement of Project:  July, 2014 

 

Estimated Date for Completion of Project:   June, 2015 
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Narrative: Detailed Project Description & Analysis 

Project Overview 
 
This application is submitted by the Morrison Farm Committee on behalf of the Board of Selectmen.  
The Committee’s initial plan leverages the decade long planning process that began in 1997 with the 
acquisition of the Farm.   
 
The farm itself is located at 116 Concord Road in East Acton and is a 32‐acre parcel that lies between the 
Woodlawn Cemetery and Ice House Pond, both of which are Town‐owned properties. The rear of the 
property (approximately 15 acres) is wooded, interlaced with walking trails. The front portion of the 
property (approximately 17 acres) is open fields with a farmhouse, garage, barn, and three out‐buildings 
next to Concord Road.  Now, organic gardening is an energetic activity on this portion of the land. 
 
In the spring of 1997, Town Meeting voted to acquire the property for $1.3MM. The Town purchased 
the Morrison Farm with a life estate to the resident, Betty Morrison. In 2003, Mrs. Morrison 
permanently vacated the property, and it then came under the control of the Town.   Planning 
commenced in earnest and the MFIP is the end result of that planning. 

Historical Overview 
 
Below is an overview of Morrison Farm and its environs. 
 
Early Development.  The 32 acres of land that currently make up the Morrison Farm were part of the 
1669 Captain Thomas Wheeler grant of 200 acres used for dry (beef ) cattle grazing land west of 
Nashoba Brook. Then, in 1676 the subject land was inherited by Nathan Robbins. The property was 
passed down through the Robbins family as undeveloped pastures until 1929. In that year, the parcel 
was sold to the Concord Ice Company, which purchased not only this 32‐acre portion but 17 acres of 
wetlands along Nashoba Brook, including Ice House Pond and the former Ice House Property. 
 
Later Development.   In 1932, the Concord Ice Company, which was established by John Forbes and 
William Grace, sold the 32‐acre Morrison Farm parcel to Edward Forbes, the brother of John Forbes. 
Edward Forbes built the house, barn, and garage around 1932‐1933. The barn was used to stable the 
oxen that were needed for the operation of the Concord Ice Company. The fields were used for grazing 
animals. The 32‐acre farm was sold twice in the 1950s, with John Morrison purchasing the property in 
1954. The property was converted into a horse farm by John Morrison.  Elizabeth Thompson Morrison 
lived in the house until 2003. 
 
Ice House Pond.  To the east of the Morrison Farm, from the lower meadow to Concord Road on the 
south, the property is bordered by the Town of Acton‐owned Ice House Pond and the former site of the 
Ice House storage facility. The Town of Acton purchased the 17‐acre Ice House Property in 1980. 
 
The Ice House Pond area was used for a saw mill and iron forge after a mill dam was established in 
1750 at 127 Concord Road, located across Concord Road from the now Town‐owned land. The earliest 
map that indicates the existence of Ice House Pond is dated 1856. The earliest Ice House is shown on an 
1875 Beers Atlas on the southwestern corner of Ice House Pond.  It appears that, in approximately 1932, 
the existing Ice House foundation, also located at the southwestern corner of Ice House Pond, was 
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poured. The Ice House facility was in operation until approximately 1954‐1955. Much of the foundation 
can be seen from the adjacent Ice House Pond parking lot.  
 
Morrison Farm links together several important neighboring properties: 
 

• East Acton Village Green.  On the southeasterly side of Ice House Pond there is a one‐acre site 
which is owned by the Town of Acton. This parcel is at the intersection of Concord Road and 
Great Road. The site has been designated as the future site of the East Acton Village Green as a 
result of the acceptance in 2004 by the Board of Selectmen of the East Acton Village Planning 
Committee’s Village Plan.  It is connected to Morrison Farm via the sidewalk along Concord 
Road, and borders the opposite side of Ice House Pond. 

 
• Woodlawn Cemetery.  The Town‐owned Woodlawn Cemetery borders the Morrison Farm on its 

westerly boundary. The cemetery is a 70.5‐acre site that was established in 1738. In 1951, the 
42‐acre portion of the Woodlawn Cemetery that abuts the Morrison Farm was purchased by the 
Town. All but 4.5 acres were approved for burial uses. The exempted 4.5 acre parcel borders the 
Morrison Farm from Concord Road to the end of the open hayfield. Because of a well on the 
Morrison Farm, this triangular parcel was restricted by the Town for burial use. 

 
• Robbins Memorial and Homestead.   On April 19, 1775, a rider, who some believe to be Dr. 

Samuel Prescott, arrived at the home of Captain Joseph Robbins to inform him that the British 
Regulars were marching to Concord.  Captain Robbins sounded the alarm that mustered the 
Acton Minutemen, under the leadership of Captain Isaac Davis.  A day later, the American 
Revolution had begun and three Acton Minutemen, including Captain Davis, had given their lives 
for their countrymen.  In 1895, a stone monument was placed on the site of the Robbins home 
commemorating the event, and directly behind the stone is the cellar hole from the original 
homestead.  It is natural to link Morrison Farm with the magnificent history of the Robbins 
Homestead and the Cemetery Commission last year voted to endorse the plan to survey and 
stabilize the cellar hole, all the while retaining control over the land that is between Morrison 
Farm and the small Robbins Memorial.   

 
• Bruce Freeman Rail Trail.   The Bruce Freeman Rail Trail (BFRT) is a 25‐mile, state‐designated rail 

trail that runs through Lowell, Chelmsford, Westford, Carlisle, Acton, Concord, Sudbury, and 
Framingham. The BFRT will abut the Village Green, Ice House Pond, and Nashoba Brook to the 
west. The Trail will enter the Town of Acton from the north near the intersection of Rt. 225 and 
Rt. 27 and will exit the town in East Acton at the junction of Rt. 2 just west of the Concord 
rotary.  Construction is expected to begin in spring 2014 on the portion near Morrison Farm.  
Acton currently has a sidewalk that runs between the designated BFRT and the Morrison Farm 
across the Concord Road Bridge. A future connection between the BFRT and the Morrison Farm 
may be considered to cross a former causeway over Nashoba Brook. The causeway was 
comprised of a spur of land and a wooden bridge that originally connected the John Robbins’ 
house at 144 Great Road (a Lottery House) to the pasture lands of the Morrison Farm.  

Project Elements and Project Scope 
 
This year’s proposal envisions three major elements: creation of Ice House Pond trails and boardwalks, 
documentation and protection of two historic foundations and surrounding areas (Robbins Homestead 
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and Ice House), and improvements to parking and access at Ice House Pond.  Below is a discussion of 
each of the Project Elements and the Scope of the Elements.  Costs for the project are provided on page 
8. 

A.  Ice House Pond Trails and Boardwalks 
 
This year’s proposal creates an ADA accessible trail that would run along the west side of Ice House 
Pond.  This trail alongside Ice House Pond will offer all visitors an opportunity to enjoy the life and vistas 
the pond offers.  Additionally, it offers a walkable path for those who need a more level footing the 
customary walks on the Morrison Farm property.  Visitors will be able to observe the habitat of the Ice 
House Pond and enjoy its views, and then enter the meadow area from the Ice House Pond area.  The 
boardwalk over the marsh area will offer opportunities for birding and fishing.  The new trail will be ADA 
accessible and use the highest quality materials reasonably available to assure the least amount of 
maintenance.   Included in this work are the following: 
 

 Walking Paths along the west side of Ice House Pond from the trailhead at the lower parking 
lot.  

 Two small boardwalk crossings over seasonably sheet flow run offs. 
 A 680‐foot boardwalk that will extend over the marshy area at the northern edge of Ice 

House Pond.   
 
The location of the trails and boardwalks is sketched in Figure 1 below. 
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members who knew that they were to gather the next morning at the home of Isaac Davis. Thus an 
important part of the American Revolution was accomplished. 
 
In 1895 a marker (“the Alarm Stone”) was placed on Concord Road to denote the location of the Robbins 
Homestead and commemorate this event.  Directly behind the rock remains the deteriorating cellar 
hole, which is filled with bittersweet and other noxious weeds, and a well. Despite its significance, very 
few in Town know of this site or its importance in Acton’s and the nation’s history.    
 
We propose to hire an archaeologist to do a complete survey. We know from a preliminary archaeology 
site walk that the existing cellar hole and extant well were just a small part of the homestead. There are 
indications that there were barns, an attached kitchen, a kitchen garden and a privy. This survey will be 
done under the direction of Massachusetts Historical Commission due to the historic nature of the site, 
and will be coordinated with our local Acton Historical commission, which supports the project.  The 
work would also include documenting the work through a historic inventory form, which would be filed 
with the Massachusetts Historical Commission and the Acton Historical commission.   
 
Once the extent of the site is known, masons will be hired to refurbish and stabilize the cellar hole.  We 
consulted with a mason experienced with preserving older structures last year.  His preliminary findings 
and estimate are detailed in Attachment C.  He observed that the foundation is suffering from rotten 
stone, particularly in the two walls of the chimney block.  There are stress fractures and a considerable 
amount of broken stone, resulting from age and the fire that destroyed the residence.  He suggested 
that the rotten stone must be replaced, but the fact that the town has a collection of suitable stones 
might reduce the costs. 
 
A later addition in a future year might include information kiosks which will explain the Revolutionary 
War events and outline the home site and a second to explain the importance of the Robbins family in 
Acton.  

2. Ice House Area   
 
As noted above, the Ice House area is an important location in the history of the Town of Acton.  Here, 
enterprise and nature intersected.  The natural power of water was corralled to power machinery and 
ice was harvested to provide cooling preservation for food.  While there was most likely a mid‐19th 
century structure on the site, around 1932, a much larger structure was built with poured concrete 
foundations. The foot print of the newer structure is about 92’ x 205’ in size. 
 
We propose to use the same archaeologist to survey the foundation area, and then mark the area.   
The concrete foundation is mostly flush to grade, and will be marked with posts or other landscape 
elements to delineate the sheer volume of the former structure. Lateral interior (strip) bearing walls will 
flush to finish grade as well.   The work would also include documenting the work through a historic 
inventory form, which would be filed with the Massachusetts Historical Commission and the Acton 
Historical Commission.   
 
A future project could include an informational kiosk with historical photos of the structure, similar to 
those along Nashoba Brook which document the Pencil Factory.  The Ice House foundation element of 
the Morrison Farm Implementation Plan repurposes the remains of this historically and culturally 
significant structure that once played a leading role in East Acton Village.  
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C.  Access and Ice House Pond Parking Improvements 
 
An improved parking lot at Ice House Pond will invite visitors to walk the trails and enjoy the view 
alongside Ice House Pond.  The footprint of the existing parking lot would be retained, but we expect 
that by clearing out and making the parking area more rectangular it would be able to accommodate 15‐
20 cars.  A small picnic area will be included adjacent to the parking area at Ice House Pond, and the 
boat launch will be refurbished and continue in use.  New signs will welcome visitors to Morrison Farm 
and direct them toward walking trails, and historic sites.  The current access point into Morrison Farm 
alongside the farmhouse will continue to provide parking near the Community Gardens. 

Project Costs 
 
The total project costs are presented below in Table 1, and presented in more detail in Attachment A. 
 

Table 1 
Project Costs 

 
 
Summary and Support 
 
The Morrison Farm Committee is committed to continuing the vision embodied in the planning process 
that has been ongoing for the last 15 years.  This first step makes some significant improvements to the 
recreational opportunities, especially adding access for persons with disabilities and those too young or 
too old to easily traverse the other paths at Morrison Farm.  Additionally, we will document and 
preserve two of the significant historic assets that border Morrison Farm.  Finally we offer some 
improvements to the parking and access to the property. 
 
We have received the support of the Board of Selectmen and the Acton Historical Commission.  We 
offered a series of walking tours of the property during September and October of this year, and 

Description Subtotals Totals
Ice House Pond Trails and Boardwalk $331,700

Ice House Pond trail, path to meadow $156,700
Marsh boardwalk $175,000

Historic Foundations ‐ Document and Preserve $27,000
Archaeological survey of Robbins 
Homestead, Ice House foundation

$12,000

Stabilization of Robbins cellar hole $15,000

Ice House Pond Parking Improvements, Picnic Area $57,850
Parking improvements $39,850
Picnic area $17,500
Boat launch $500

Total Request $416,550
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welcomed approximately 12‐15 visitors to each of the walks who enjoyed the opportunity to learn about 
Morrison Farm and offer their suggestions as well.  
 
We thank you in advance for your consideration of this application. 
 
Morrison Farm Committee 
Mary Ann Ashton, Chair 
Charlie Aaronson 
Leanne Baxter 
Jon Benson 
Ann Chang 
Kitty Cunkelman 
Peter Grover 
Andy Magee 
Bill Mullin 
Doug Tindal 
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List of Attachments 
 
 
The following attachments are provided for reference: 

 
Attachment A:  Complete Project Costs 
Attachment B:  Historic Inventory Form – Area Form for Morrison Farm 
Attachment C:  Historic Foundations – Supporting Information  
Attachment D:  Maps 
Attachment E:  Support Letter from Acton Historical Commission 
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Attachment A – Complete Project Costs 

 

Ice House Pond Trails and Marsh Boardwalk

Pond Edge Trail & path to meadow Quantity Cost Total Costs
2200' of ADA Trail - Stone Dust and Paver Edging 5' wide 2200 $50.00 $110,000
Boardwalk Crossing over seasonal wet area (BW #1 & #2) 2 $0.00 $30,000
Wet Lands Protection during construction 4400 $3.00 $13,200
Engineering & Permitting NOI 1 $3,500.00 $3,500

$156,700

Marsh Boardwalk
Engineering & Permits 1 $50,000
Marsh Board Walk, Est. 680' (BW #3) 1 $125,000

$175,000

Ice House Pond Trails and Boardwalk Subtotal $331,700

Historic Foundations - Robbins Homestead and Ice House

Archaelogical Survey, inventory forms for Robbins Homestead and Ice 
House

1                  $12,000.00 $12,000

Foundation Stabilization for Robbins Homestead Cellar Hole 1                  $15,000.00 $15,000

Historic Foundations - Robbins Homestead and Ice House Subtotal $27,000

Ice House Pond Parking, Picnic Area
Ice House Pond Parking Improvements
Clear and grub at Icehouse 10,000          SF $1.50 $15,000
New gravel Paving 7,500            SF $2.50 $18,750
Erosion Control/Wetlands Protection 200              LF $3.00 $600
Stormwater BMP / Grass swale/basin 2                  Allow $1,500.00 $3,000
Engineering & Permitting / NOI 1                  Allow $2,500.00 $2,500

$39,850

Picnic Area and Boat Launch
Picnic surface mulch 2,250            SF $2.00 $4,500
Picnic tables 10                each $300.00 $3,000
Interpretive signs 5                  Allow $2,000.00 $10,000
Boat launch 1                  Allow $500.00 $500

$18,000

Ice House Pond Parking, Picnic Area Subtotal $57,850

Grand Total for Morrison Farm Committee Request $416,550
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Attachment B – Historic Inventory Form – Morrison Farm Area Form 



Appendix 1: Historic inventory

FORM A AREA Asscsso’s Shes

F-4/34
-/27

MASSACHUSETTS HiSTORICAL COMMISSION

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUiLDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BosroN, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

USGS Qwd Area Lttr Form Numbers in Ares

I Maynard 0 657—660
L 92—92R

Town .i-,

Place (neighborhood or village)

East Acton

of Area Forbes—Morrison Farm

it Use recreational

(municipal)

49.5 acres

kledby Arthur Erim

Organization Acton Hist. CommissIon

Date (month/year) March 2006

see attached map

Photoamoh

rucdon Dates orPeriodl8th—2Oth Cent

II Condition fair

Intrusions and Alterations_____________

n .ircc aria mimFier propertiesjar 7001cD mtvviauat

inventoryforms have been completed. Label streets

including route numbers, fany. Astath a continua..

tion sheet fspace knot sufficient here. Indicate
north.

Falkrs 1L rncbiuenr Hisrsrirsl Ca#miisnm Swt’r iltoimI insrmaior.sfrr completing ibis form



Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

AREA FORM

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION see continuation sheet
Describe architectural, structural and landscape features and evaluate in terms ofother areas within the community.

HISTORICAL NARRATiVE ] see continuation sheet
&plain historical development ofthe area. Discuss how this area relates to the historical development ofthe commu
nity.

BIBLIOGRAPHY and/ar REFERENCES J see continuation sheet

Recommended as a National Register District. Ifchecked, you must attach a completed National Register
Criteria Statementform.

7/92



Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET Town Property Address

MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL CoussIoN

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

LOCATION MAP

Acton 116—128 Concnrei p

Area(s) Fonsi No.

0 657—660

Acton Assessors Maps F—4, G—4

1/95



Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET To Property Address

MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL Coz1Iss1oN

MASSACHUSETTS ARcHIVEs BUILDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BosToN, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

Area(s) Form No.

I o 657—660
g7 r))Q

Acton 116-12R flnnnri P

ARCHIVE MAP

AMS. Maynard Quadran2le. 1943

1/95



Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET Town Property Address

Acton 116—1 C r’nr.i Pi
MASSACHUSETrS HISTORICAL CotssIoN

&j) Form No.
MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDiNG

2ZOMORRISSEY BOULEVARD I__0

BosToN, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

The Forbes—Morrison Farm Area is comprised of the former
Forbes—Morrison Farm at 116 Concord Road of 32.5 acres of
alluvial glacial soils on a level plain of Nashoba Brook,
including 16.5 acres of pasture land (AC’r.924) and 16 acres
of woodland (ACT.925), now owned by the Town of Acton, with
an additional 17 acres of wetland along Nashoba Brook of i
House pond at 120—128 Concord Road (ACT.926), also owned by
the Town of Acton. The area contains several buildings, and
other structures related to the original dairy farm and ice
business formerly operated on the site. The oldest surviving
structure is the causeway (ACT.928) over Nashoba Brook at
the upper (north) end. of Ice House Pond, set behind the John
Robbins House at 144 Great Road (ACT.4l). The causeway was
apparently constructed during the early 19th century, likely
after the Robbins House was built in 1799—1800, and before
the Framingham & Lowell Railroad (Penn Central, abandoned)
was built in 1871. The causeway consists of an earthen
roadway lined with stone walls on both the east and west
side of Nashoba Brook, with a gap at the brook where a
wooden bridge was formerly located (now razed). A 20th
century structure is also evident on the west shore of Ice
House Pond at 120-128 Concord Road. The concrete foundation
of a former ice house (ACT.927), apparently built in
1g29—1932, located on the site of an earlier wood framed ice
house shown on the 1875 and 1889 Atlases. -The present
foundation is aligned to Concord Road with a poured concrete
wall approximately 100 feet in length and the remains of a
curved concrete wall overlooking Ice House Pond, apparently
part of the original structure. The ice house remained
active untilca.1955 when it was abandoned after hurricane
damage (Klauer, 2004). The original mill dam for Ice House
Pond was formed by the location of Concord Road, established
in 1749, with reconstruction as a granite embankment and
bridgeway in the mid—l9th century (Klauer 2001:22), recently
rebuilt as a concrete culvert in 1995 by the town (York
2006). The original sluceway is located at 127 Concord Road
at the site of the saw mill established in ca.1670 by Cpt.
Wheeler (not surveyed).

The Forbes—Morrison Farm at 116 Concord Road consists of a
former dairy farm with the Forbes-Morrison House (ACT.657),
barn (ACT.658), auto garage (ACT.659), tool house (ACT.660),

(continued) -
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET TowTi Property Address

Acton 116—128 Concord Rd.
MASSACHUSETrS HISTORICAL CoIssION

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BosToN, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

and other outlying structures. These were apparently built
by the Concord Ice Company for Edward Forbes in 1932—1933,
likely from standard plans by an unknown architect. The
Forbes—Morrison House (ACT.657) follows a side hall plan of
two stories with a gable end roof and right side sun room,
set on a concrete foundation. The design is a plain
functional Colonial Revival—Craftsman Style with minimal
details, as seen in the flared belt course and the portico
electric lamps. Other details include the paired windows on
the facade and the geometric brick fireplace in the main
parlor room. The wood shingle siding and concrete stairs of
the portico entrance are original to the design. The barn
±c1T.658) is a substantial wood framed building, set on a
concrete foundation, with a gable end roof. The barn has two
central sliding doors on both north and south side forming a
central passage with a smaller door on the right facade,
reportedly for the oxen used in the ice harvest on Ice House
Pond (ACT.926) by the Concord Ice Company (Whittier 2006).s.
with the interior apparently intact, remodeled for later use
as a horse stable. The design is similar to the main house
with shingle siding and small paned stable windows on both
the north and south sides. The auto garage (ACT.659) is a
single bay plan with gable ends and shingle siding, with
original hinged doors in dutch style. An adjacent hen house
(ACT.660)) is built of clapboard on a earth foundation, and
a rear chicken coop is of plain functional construction (not
surveyed). Other related structures include wood fencing
near the main house and barn that likely date to the horse
corals erected after 1954 when the farm was purchased by
John Morrison (not surveyed).

The Forbes-Morrison Farm is bounded by a stone wall
(ACT.923) on the west side with Woodlawn Cemetery, and on
the north side, with a division wall between the open
pasture and the woodland. These are of free stone boulder
construction in the traditional style, and likely date to
the mid-l8th century Joseph Robbins Farm (see ACT.929) of
ca.1750. The original Robbins farm occupied part of the
Capt. Wheeler grant of 1669 for pasture grazing, and it is
possible that some of the walls might predate the Robbins
farm development. At present, the open pasture land
(ACT.924) has been actively maintained since the mid-2Oth
century, and might have been possibly part of the original
Wheeler grant pasture. The north section of the

(continued)

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION II

Area(s) Form No.

E o 1657_66092—928
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET Town Property Address

Acton 116—128 Concord Rd.
MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL CouiIsstoN

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION III

Forbes-Morrison Farm is woodland (ACT.925), now primarily
second growth white pine forest since before World War II. A
former quarry site is also located within the woodland area,
likely of 19th century date (Tinden 2006).

The Forbes—Morrison Farm Area comprises one of the last
intact surviving farmsteads in Acton with original buildings
dating to the mid-2Oth century, including a farm house dairy
barn garage. The Ice House Pond area contains several
structures of note, including an early 19th century causeway
behind 144 Great Road (ACT.41).and a mid-2Oth century ice
house foundation at 120-128 Concord Road. The farm land is
comprised of 32.5 acres of pasture and woodland that have
remained intact from farmland dating to the mid—l8th century
defined by surviving stone walls. Moreover, the present open
pasture possibly dates from the Wheeler grant of the late
17th century, a remarkable continuity of agricultural
landscape in the Boston area.

Are(s) Focin No.

F 0 657—6601
923 928
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

INVENTORY FORM CONTiNUATION SHEET Town Property Address

Acton 116—128 Concord Rd.
MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL CoMMIssIoN

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE

The Forbes-Morrison Farm Area consists of 32.5 acres of
former the Forbes-Morrison Farm at 116 Concord Road
jACT.924-925) with buildings dated to 1932—1933
(AcT.657—660) by deeds and local histories, and 17 acres of
wetland along Nashoba Brook forming Ice House Pond at
120—128 Concord Road (ACT.926) with relict structures dated
to the 19th and 20th centuries (ACT.927—928J by deeds, maps
and photographs. Both properties are now owned by the Town
of Acton, acquired in 1997 and 1980 respectively. The area
was originally part of the Captain Thomas Wheeler grant of
1669 for 200 acres of cattle grazing land ‘west of Nashoba
Brook (Fletcher 1890:239). Reconstruction of the Wheeler
grant on modern niaps indicates that a section of the
original grazing land includes the section of the present
Forbes-Morrison Farm (Choate 1994), comprising the present
open pasture land at 116 Concord Road. The area was then
included as part of the Nathan Robbins Farm after the death
of Cpt. Wheeler in 1676, and later inherited by Joseph
Robbins as his farm at 110 Concord Road (see ACT. 929)
established in ca.1750 (Nylander ca.1980). The Robbins farm
was inherited by John Robbins before 1800 and portions of
the property, including the parcel at 116 Concord Road,
inherited by Elbridge Robbins from George W. Robbins after
1836 (Nylander ca.1980). It is likely that the surviving
stone wall (ACT.923) on the west boundary, of the
Forbes—Morrison Farm at Woodlawn Cemetery is possibly dated
to the mid-l8th century Joseph Robbins Farm, including the
surviving stone wall dividing the present pasture land from
the rear (north) woodland area. The 1830 Hales Map shows the
Robbins Farm area as open land, including the present
Forbes—Morrison Farm, both pasture (ACT.924) and rear
woodland (ACT.925) . After 1836 the Robbins Farm was
abandoned when George W. Robbins moved to Lowell (Nylander
ca.l980). The present area of the Forbes—Morrison Farm ‘was
apparently included within the John Robbins Farm at 144
Great Road (ACT.4fl after 1836. It is likely that the
surviving causeway over Nashoba Brook (ACT.928) to the rear
of the John Robbins House (ACT.41) was constructed during
the early 19th century to connect the two Robbins Farms,
although no indication is given on the 1830 Hales or the
1856 Walling Maps of the causeway location. The farm land at
11,6 Concord Road was subsequently included with

(cbntinuecl)

Ares(s) Form No

657—660
0 923—928
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

INVENTORY FORM CONTiNUATION SHEET Town Property Address

Acton 116—128 Concord Rd.
MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL CoMMissioN

Area(s) Form No.MASSACHUSETTS ARcHIvEs BUILD[NG
657-660220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD 0

BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE II

the Elbridge Robbins estate in 1891 as part of the “100
acres west of Nashoba Brook” in the sale to his wife, Mary
Robbins (MIddlesex 2158-125). Thereafter the present
farmland was transferred from Mary Robbins to Amelia Robbinsin 1908 and to Bernard Ncrath and Thomas McGrath in 1920 asthe 100 acre parcel. In 1929 this parcel was sold to theConcord Ice Company (Middlesex 5341—117). established in
1921 by John E. Forbs and William Grace, employees of theBoston Ice Company. In 1932, the section west of Ice HousePond was sold to Edward L Forbes, brother of John Forbes,with his wife Anna (Middlesex 5685-281), including the
present Forbes-Morrison Farm at 116 Concord Road. EdwardForbes is first listed in the Acton Tax valuation in 1933,thus dating construction of the house (ACT.657), and likelythe barn (ACT.658), garage (ACT.659) and hen house (ACT.660)to 1932-1933 as unique Depression period farm buildings inActon. The farm was apparently used in conjunction with the
Concord Ice Company ice harvest operations on Ice House Pond
(ACT.926), with oxen stabled in the barn (ACT.658) andrelated grazing pasture (ACT.924) (‘Whittier 2006).

The land use of the Forbes—Morrison Farm can be
reconstructed from USGS topographic maps of the MaynardQuadrangle for 1940—1943 that show the present pasture land
(ACT.924) was open land in 1941, while the rear woodland
(ACT.925) was forested in 1941 at the start of World War II.This confirms the field survey by Tidman (2006) that reportsthe present white pine forest dates to ca.1930 as a secondgrowth woodland. The Forbes Farm was sold in 1952 to John D.Dartmouth of Wellesley and purchased in 1954 by John C.
Morrison with 16 acres of pasture, 16 acres of woodland, and
a half-acre for the house and barn. The property was
converted for use as a horse farm after 1954 and was
maintained until 1989, sold to the son, John C. Morrison in1978. •In 1997 the Forbes—Morrison Farm was acquired by the
Town of Acton as municipal property.

The Ice House Pond (ACT.926) area of 17 acres along NashobaBrook has been used for saw mill and iron forge water powersince a mill dam established in ca.1750 at the site of
present 127 Concord Road (not surveyed), outside the town
municipal property area. The earliest detailed map of the
area, the 1794 Town Map, shows Nashoba Brook as a dotted

(continued)
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

[NVENTORYFORM CONTINUATION SHEET Toi PropertyAddress

Acton 116—128 Conc’nrr ti
MASSACHUSETrS HISTORICAL CoMMissioN

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES J3UILDLNG

220 MORR1SSEY BOULEVARD

BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE III

line, with the saw mill south of Concord Road (127 Concord
Road), without indicating a mill pond. Likewise, the 1830
Hales Map also shows Nashoba Broo] as a flowing stream
without a mill pond indicated. The earliest map to show the
present Ice House Pond is the 1856 Walling Map, suggesting
the present pond was formed sometime after 1830, possibly in
relationship to the Wetherbee Mill at 94 Great Road (Bursaw
Oil Co., not surveyed). The Ice House Pond (ACT.926) has
been a semi—permanent feature, reportedly drained
periodically, the most recent in 1995 (York 2006). The
earliest ice house is shown on the 1875 Beers Atlas of East
Action Village, on the north side of Concord Road, and again
on the 1889 Walker Atlas, near the present foundation of the
Concord Ice Company ice house (ACT.927). This ice house also
appears on the 1889 Walker Atlas and in late 19th century
photographs (Klauer 2001:22). The present ice house
foundation (ACT.927) was apparently built after 1929 with
the purchase of the Elbridge Robbins property by the Concord
Ice Company, and likely completed in 1932 with the sale of
the pasture and woodland to Edward Forbes for the
Forbes—Morrison Farm (see above). The ice house is shown
clearly on the 1950 Maynard Quadrangle, and was active until
the hurricane season of 1954—1955 (Klauer 2004)

The Forbes—Morrison Farm Area is of significant historic
value as a surviving segment of open pasture land from the
17th century Cpt. Wheeler Grant and a rare intact 20th
century fariustead within Acton, including the 19th century
Ice House Pond wetland along Nashoba Brook and surviving
18th century stone walls of the earlier Robbins Farm. The
Forbes—Morrison Farm at 116 Concord Road includes a unique
collection of Depression era farm buildings from the 1930s,
while the Ice House Pond includes remains of a Modern Period
ice house that functioned until the 1950s, as well as an
early 19th century causeway over Nashoba Brook behind the
John Robbins House at 144 Great Road. As an ensemble, these
features preserve an agricultural landscape that has been in
continuous use since the Early Colonial Period of the Cpt.
Wheeler Grant in 1669.

Arca(s) Form No.r 657—660
923—92 8
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

iNVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SI{EET Town Property Address

MASSACHUSETTS HIsToRIcAL COI.MISSION Acton.U6=.l2.8-Cno4--R4-.-——-------————

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING Area(s) Foms No.

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD I I 657-660 i0 g-g
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

AREA DATA SHEET
FORBES-MOREl SON FARM
ACTON, MASSACHUSETTS

MHC* ADDRESS NAME DATE

657 116 Concord Rd. Forbes-Morrison Ho. 1932—33
658 116 Concord Rd. Forbes—Morrison Barn 1932—33
659 116 Concord Rd. Forbes-Morrison darag&32-33
660 116 Concord Rd. Forbes—Morrison Hen Ho’32—33
923 116 Concord Rd. stone wall ?l8th C.
924 116 Concord Rd pasture land ?l7th C.
925 116 Concord Rd. woodland 20th C.
926 120-128 Concord Rd. Ice House Pond 19th C.
927 120-128 Concord Rd. Ice House foundation 1929—32
928 144 Great Rd—Rear Nashoba Brook causeway 19th C.
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

rNVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET To Property Address

Acton 116-128 Coneord 1d.MASSACHUSETrS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING
220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Acton Town Tax Valuations. Acton: by the town, 1932-1934.Army Map Service. Maynard Quadrangle (1:25,000) Washington;AMS, 1943.
Acton Tax Valuations. Acton: by the town, 1932—1934.Atlas of Middlesex County. New York: J.B. Neers, 1875.Atlas of Middlesex County. Boston. G.W. Walker, 1889.Choate, Isabella V.. Map of Acton, First and SecondDivisions of Concord Village, 1732-1734. Avton, ActonHistorical Society, 1994. printout.
Fletcher, James. Acton in History. Philadelphia: J.W. Lewis,1890.
Karr, Ronald Dale. The Rail Lines of Southern New England.Pepperell, -MA: Branch Line Press, 1995.Klauer, William A. Acton, Images of America. Charleston, SC:Arcadia Publishing, 2001.
f_____ ). Morrison Farm Master Plan. Acton: by the town,2004.
Hopkins, Gigi. The Morrison Farm; A Short History. Acton:Morrison Farm Planning Committee, 2006. printoutMap of Middlesex County. Boston: H.F. Walling, 1856.Middlesex Deeds (Cambridge). 116 Concord Rd. :2158—125(1892), 3529—47 (1908), 4328—421 (1920), 5341—117(1929), 5685—28 (1932), 7893—489 (1952), 8261—259(1954), 13547—48 (1978), 27831—287 (1997). 120—128Concord Rd.: 5341—117 (1929), 13976—255 (1980).Nylander, Robert H. The Robbins Family. Acton: ActonHistorical Society, ca.1980, manuscript.Phalen, Harold R. History of the Town of Acton. Cambridge:Middlesex Inc., 1954.
Plan of Acton by J.G. Hales. Boston: Mass. Archives, 1830.Plan of Acton. Boston. Mass. Archives, 1794.
Tidman, Tom. Marrison Farm Woodland, email to A. Krim,6 March 2006.
U.S. Geological Survey. Maynard Quadrangle (1:31:680).Washington: UGGS, 1g41, 1950.

_____

Maynard Quadrangle (1:25,000) Aerial Photomontage.Washington: USGS, 1977.
York, Cory. Acton, Engineering Department, Telephone with A..Erim, 1 March 2006.
Whittier, John. Interview with A. Forbes, 19 March 2006.Wood, Franklin P. “Acton,” In HistorLof Middlesex County byS.A. Drake. Boson: Estes and Lawrence, 1880, Vol I,pp.196—208.

Ares(s) Form No.
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

TNVENTORY FORM CONTTNUATION SHEET Town Property Address

MASSACHUSETTS HISTORiCAL CoussIoN

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

Acton 1i6—12 Crrnrnr Rd

&ea(s) Form No.

657— 660
923—928

rbes-Norrison House
6 Concord Road
T.657

rbes—Morrison Barn
6 Concord Road
T.658

rbes—Morrison Farse
6 Concord Road
rage ACT.659
fl House ACT.660
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

iNVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET Town Property Address

MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL CossION

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHiVES BUILDING

220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

Acton 1116—128 Concord Rd.

Axa(s) Fonu No.
657—660

0 923—928
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

Forbes Morrison Farm
116 Concord Road
Stone Wall ACT.923
West Boundary

Ice House Pond
120-128 Concord Rd.
Causeway ACT.928
(144 Great Road Rear)

(ACT. 41)

Ice House Pond
120—128 Concord Rd
Causeway ACT.928
(144 Great Road Rear)

(ACT.41)
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

MASSACFIUSETFS HISToRIcAL COMMISSION Town Propeity Address
M4ssAcHusrFs ARCHIVES BUILDING
220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

ActonUi28iri_.

BOSTON, MAssAcHlJsErrS 02125

Check all that apply

Individually eligible 0 Eligible only in a historic district
Contributing to a potential historic district 0 Potential historic district

Criteria: kIA []B C aD

Criteria Considerations U A U B DC C D C E 0 F U G

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTOC PLACES
Criteria Statement Form

Statement of Significance brthur Rrim
The aitsria that are checked in the above sections lrnlrt bejwtifiad bare.

The Forbes—Morrison Farm Area is composed of two parcels,including the Forbes-Morrison Farm at 116 Concord Road of32.5 acres and the Ice House Pond at 120—128 Concord Roadalong Nashoba Brook of 17, acres, both acquired by the. Townof Acton in 1997 and 1980 respectively. The Forbes—MorrisonFarm remains intact as a mid—2Oth century farmsteadestablished during the Great Depression by Edward Forbes,and later owned by John Morrison after 1954. The propertyincludes the original 1932—1933 farm house and barn with18th century stone walls bounding the pasture and woodland,that comprise the grazing land of the 17th century CaptainThomas Wheeler Grant of 1669. The Ice House Pond containsthe relict structures of a 20th century ice house, built in1929-1932 by the Concord Ice Company, and a 19th centurycauseway over Nashoba Brook behind the John Robbins House at144 Great Road. The Ice Pond was created sometime after 1830and before 1856 for commercial ice harvesting, thatcontinued until ca.1955. The Forbes—Morrison Farm Area isrecommended for National Register Consideration underCriteria A for its association with the early history ofActon and Concord, and Criteria C for its historicagricultural landscape, intact since the 17th century, andthe well-preserved Depression period farmstead Of house,barn and out buildings.

Form NorTiii.
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Appendix 1: Historic inventory, continued

MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL ConssIoN Town Property Address

MASSACHUSETTS ARCHIVES BUILDING
AetOn 1.16-1 28 Cojtcor&.Rd220 MORRISSEY BOULEVARD

BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02125

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

Individually eligibLe 0 Eligible anlym a historic district
Contributing to a potential historic district 0 Potential historic district

Criteria: I A 0 B C 0 D

Criteria Considerations: 0 A C] B [)C LI D L] E []F C] G

Statement of Significance byt Krim

The criteria that are checked in the above ,ecteo,u murt bejustified here.

The Forbes-Morrison Farm Area is composed of two parcels,
including the Forbes-Morrison Farm at 116 Concord Road of
32.5 acres and the Ice House Pond at 120-128 Concord Road
along Nashoba Brook of 17, acres, both acquired by the. Town
of Acton in 1997 and 1980 respectively. The Forbes-Morrison
Farm remains intact as a utid—2Oth century farmstead
established during the Great Depression by Edward Forbes,
and later owned by John Morrison after 1954. The property
includes the original 1932—1933 farm house and barn with
18th century stone walls bounding the pasture and woodland,
that comprise the grazing land of the 17th century Captain
Thomas Wheeler Grant of 1669. The Ice House Pond contains
the relict structures of a 20th century ice house, built in
1929-1932 by the Concord Ice Company, and a 19th century
causeway over Nashoba Brook behind the John Robbins House at
144 Great Road. The Ice Pond was created sometime after 1630
and before 1856 for commercial ice harvesting, that
continued until ca.1955. The Forbes—Morrison Farm Area is
recommended for National Register Consideration under
Criteria A for its association with the early history of
Acton and Concord, and Criteria C for its historic
agricultural landscape, intact since the 17th century, and
the well—preserved Depression period farmstead of house,
barn and out buildings.
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Excerpts of E-mail Report to Linda McElroy from 
David Stewart Smith, DunRaven Masonry 
November 27, 2012 
 
The foundation at the farm is suffering from rotten stone particularly in the two walls of the 
chimney block. I had noticed stress fractures before, but today we saw a considerable amount 
of stone in broken down condition. I am wondering if the house burned down? This would 
promote cracking in the rock, most of the striated schist is deteriorating. Short of doing a 
complete rebuild, I suggest that you get the site tidied up and the undergrowth killed off. The 
cellar hole as it stands could last for a few more years. As time goes along, the walls will 
develop problems, first being the bulge and seams on the roadside wall under the fence post, at 
a later date the corner of the chimney block will separate. There is very little we can do now to 
stabilize the building short of shuttering the walls which will look terrible.  
 
Restoration would be extensive as all of the rotten stone must be removed and replaced, 
possibly as much as half of the stone in the chimney block -- 10 lineal yards on one wall and 
possibly 6 lineal yards on the other. Replacement stone is running about $400 per cubic yard 
(about 2 lineal yards). Labor would be extensive. I strongly suggest you get a local dry stone 
mason to look at it and get you a price to rebuild with as much original stone as possible. The 
whole project could cost as much as $20,000 and requires intensive labor and stone removal.  
 
In the meantime the site can be cleaned up and enjoyed, knowing that the work will have to be 
done eventually (probably within 3 years) which may give you time to work on raising the funds.  
 
David Stewart-Smith PhD, master mason 
DunRaven Masonry 
Webster, NH 
 
 
Your message is ready to be sent with the following file or link 
attachments: 
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Robbins Homestead cellar hole front wall 

 
Robbins Homestead cellar hole looking west chimney block 
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Robbins Homestead cellar hole north chimney block 

 
 



Plymouth Archaeological Rediscovery Project (PARP)
355 Orchard St. New Bedford, MA 02740

774-488-2095
craig@plymoutharch.com

Re: Proposal for Archaeological Site Examination Morrison Farm, Acton, MA

Date: December 5, 2012

Thank you for contacting the Plymouth Archaeological Rediscovery Project (PARP) to submit a
proposal for archaeological Site Examination investigations. The purpose of the survey is to identify
patterns of historic occupation and activity on the parcel, to determine known and probable locations
archaeological resources, and provide recommendations for preservation and! or further investigation if
needed. The survey may include background research conducted at the Massachusetts Historical
Commission (MHC), the Massachusetts State Archives, the Acton Historical Society, and the Acton
Public Library as necessary. The Site Examination is designed to provide a probability assessment of
the potential of archaeological remains being present within the project area. The survey utilizes the
same criteria used by the MHC during any review process that may involve them. The probability
assessment used the variables of soil types, slope, proximity to water, degree of known or suspected
disturbance, and proximity to known, previously identified archaeological resources, to create
predictions regarding what types of archaeological resources may be present.

This not to exceed (NTE) cost proposal includes background research, site visit, and report production.

The total cost for the project is broken down as follows:

Cost Proposal! Scope of Work
Archaeological Site Examination for the Morrison Farm Property, Acton, MA
Background Research 16 hours
Permit Application 20 hours
Field work 40 hours
Process/ Analysis 16 hours
Report 30 hours
Total 122 hours $4880.00

Archaeological testing would be associated with the proposed impacts that the reconstruction of the
cellar walls will cause as well as testing to determine the size and layout of the original house and to
locate any structures of significant archaeological deposits with 100 feet of the cellar hole (Figure 1).
Proposed testing includes the excavation of three to four, 50 cm wide by up to 10 meter long, trenches
extending away from the cellar walls to identify the locations of the original house walls and to
determine the original house size. The remaining excavations will consist of a series of 50 cm square
test pits placed on a 5 meter staggered grid extending away from the house. The purpose of this testing
is to 1) determine if the location of the original barn and outbuildings associated with the farm exist
within this area, 2) to locate any significant archaeological deposits around the house; 3) to test the

1



integrity and degree of disturbance of the area around the house; 4) and to create a sensitivity map for
the property immediately adjacent to the house.

No testing is proposed at the ice house site project area or along the proposed trail that will run along
Ice House Pond. The Ice House Site ill be measured and mapped after the underbrush is cleared, but
due to past disturbance and the relatively recent nature of the site, no testing is proposed here. The
proposed trail will not involve deep impacts to the ground surface and as a result, no testing will be
necessary there as well.

Historic archaeological site forms will be filled out for the Robbins house and the Ice House sites.
These forms will be submitted with the final report to the Massachusetts Historical Commission.

All excavations and testing will follow archaeological procedures and methods and will be carried out
with the assistance of non-professional volunteers. All soil will be screened through archaeological
screens fitted with 1/4 inch hardware cloth. Excavation will be conducted in natural stratigraphic levels
which are subdivided into 10 cm arbitrary levels. All artifacts recovered will be placed into separate
bags by unit and level for cleaning and cataloging following fieldwork. Detailed notes will be kept for
each of the excavation units, test trenches and test pits. These notes will include descriptions of soil
colors and textures as well as scale drawing of all test units, trenches and pits. Photographs will be
taken of the entire excavation process as well as the process of deconstructing and reconstructing the
chamber walls. All artifacts recovered as well as the original field notes, photographs will be deposited
in a state approved curation facility within or near Acton.
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Attachment E – Support Letter from Acton Historical Commission 
 

 
 
 



 

     
 
 
 
 

 
MASSACHUSETTS 01720 

 
ACTON HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

 
 
November 9, 2013 
 
Community Preservation Committee 
Acton Town Hall 
472 Main Street 
Acton, MA 01720 
 
 
Letter of Endorsement for CPC Requests 
 
This letter of support is for two independent requests for Community Preservation Committee 
funding for Morrison Farm related projects.   
 
While we have been solicited to endorse the restoration of the foundation of the Captain Robbins 
house on Concord Road, as well as the foundation of the East Acton Ice House, we have not 
inspected the applications to ensure that the specifics attain the criteria of the Secretary of the 
Interior’s preservation standards. 
 
The Captain Joseph Robbin’s house foundation is a mid 1700’s foundation that has weathered the 
elements of time and nature since the house burned about 160 years ago.  It currently is in the early 
stages of collapse being assisted by nearby tree roots, water infiltration and neglect.  In addition, the 
visible portion of the foundation is likely a partial revelation of the entire foundation. 
 
The Ice House Foundation is also a unique structure, concealed by 60 years of growth.  Only the 
outer perimeter of the early 20th century foundation is visible.  It is likely the last remaining 
undisturbed location of an ice house in Acton. 
 
The Historical Commission requests that the Community Preservation Committee carefully review 
the two requests for funding and work closely with the Historical Commission to ensure that the 
resulting end products become something that will be available for future generations to view and 
understand the importance of the two sites. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 
 
William A. Klauer 
Chairperson 




